
 

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP   ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  CEDAR SPRINGS 

COOPERSVILLE  COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE  GREENVILLE   HASTINGS 

HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL  LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE  OTTAWA COUNTY  PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP  ROCKFORD 

 SAND LAKE   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 

 

678 FRONT AVENUE N.W.  SUITE 200  GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504  PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)  FAX 774-9292  WWW.GVMC.ORG 

 

 
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMMING STUDY GROUP 

Tuesday, August 27, 2019 
9:30 AM 

Grand Valley Metro Council 
Conference Room 

678 Front Ave NW, Suite 200, GRAND RAPIDS 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES—ACTION: Dated February 26, 2019 

Please refer to Item II: Attachment A  
 
III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
IV. FY2020-2023 NONMOTORIZED PROJECTS—DISCUSSION/ACTION: The 

Subcommittee will be asked to discuss and make a recommendation to the 
Technical Committee regarding the proposed pool of potential TAP projects 
recommended by the Nonmotorized Subcommittee.  
Please refer to Item IV: Attachment A  

  
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 



DRAFT                                                                                   DRAFT 
                                                     ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 1

 MINUTES 
 

Grand Valley Metropolitan Council 
Transportation Division 

TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMMING STUDY GROUP 
 Tuesday, February 26, 2019 

Grand Valley Metro Council     678 Front Ave NW 
 
The TPSG committee members elected Conners to Chair this meeting in Laughlin’s absence. 
 
Conners, called the meeting to order at 9:00 am.  
  

I. ROLL CALL AND INTRODUCTIONS 
 

Voting Members Present 
Wayne Harrall (Vice Chair)     County of Kent 
Tonya Baker   Proxy for    City of Cedar Springs 
    Bill LaRose   City of Cedar Springs 
Kristin Bennett       City of Grand Rapids 
Scott Conners       City of Walker 
Mike DeVries       Grand Rapids Township 
Rick DeVries       City of Grand Rapids 
Tom Doyle       MDOT 
Jeff Oonk   Proxy for   City of Wyoming 
    Bill Dooley   City of Wyoming 
Terry Schweitzer      City of Kentwood 
Conrad Venema       ITP-The Rapid 
 
Staff and Non-Voting Guests Present 
 
Steve Hartman      Hope Network 
Abed Itani       GVMC Staff 
Laurel Joseph       GVMC Staff 
Dennis Kent       MDOT Grand Region 
Kerri Smit       GVMC Staff 
Rick Sprague       Kent County Road Commission 
Kevin Wisselink      ITP-The Rapid 
 
 
Voting Members Not Present 
Tim Bradshaw       City of Kentwood 
Mike Burns       City of Lowell  
Sharon DeLange      Village of Sparta 
Bill Dooley       City of Wyoming 
Adam Elenbaas       Allendale Township 
Roy Hawkins       GRFIA 
Doug LaFave       East Grand Rapids 
Bill LaRose       City of Cedar Springs 
Brett Laughlin       Ottawa County Road Commission 



DRAFT                                                                                   DRAFT 
                                                     ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 2

Sandy Stelma       Village of Caledonia 
Dan Strikwerda       City of Hudsonville 
Charlie Sundblad      City of Grandville 
Phil Vincent       City of Rockford 
Steve Warren        KCRC 
 
 
 
 
 

I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Conners entertained a motion to approve the December 3 and 5, 2019 TPSG meeting minutes.  
 
MOTION by Harrall, SUPPORT by DeVries, besides a couple minor changes to spelling, to 
approve the December 3 and 5, 2019 TPSG Committee meeting minutes.  MOTION CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

II. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

None. 
 
III. PROGRAMMING OF PROJECTS FOR FY2019 STP – Urban Funds  

DISCUSSION/ACTION:  The Committee will be asked to program under-programmed 2019 STP – 
Urban funds. 
Please refer to Item IV: Attachment A   
 
Joseph explained that when originally programing the 2017/2020 TIP the allocation assumption was 
that the funds would be 8.2 million for STP however it was actually 8.7 million for 2019.  Which is a 
surplus of $484,322 and will be excepting proposals from the committee on how to allocate the funds. 
 
Itani also advised on several options to use the funding. 
 
Harrall asked if adding to existing projects that have not been obligated if it can be done as an 
administrative change.  Joseph replied by saying yes and explained that as long as the total cost of the 
project does not go up or down by more than 25%, if you’re messing with match.  It would be an 
administrative adjustment (admin mod) 
 
Harrall presented his proposal on the 100th Street Bridge replacement project that is in the TIP as an 
MDOT project.  Kent discussed the trail and the funds associated with that part of the project.  Itani 
asked it this entire project was currently in the TIP.  Kent replied that is was and it is all under the 
100th Street Bridge Project, to include bridge, trail and approaches.  Discussion ensued. 
 
ITP advised that if they were given the funds they could buy another bus. 
 
DeVries offered the Hasting Street project for the funding. Grand Valley recently opened a new 
training facility on Hastings along with additional building.  When the traffic study was performed it 
was advised to have traffic going both ways on Hastings all the way to College Ave to allow Michigan 



DRAFT                                                                                   DRAFT 
                                                     ITEM II: ATTACHMENT A 

 3

Street to continue to work properly.  $182,000 is the requested amount and DeVries added the Federal 
funding would be helpful. 
 
Discussion’s continued including discussion on obligation authority issues.  Harrall explained more 
details regarding the 100th Street Project including the truck traffic and the pedestrian traffic.  Bennett 
expressed her concern of not having the trail connect and pedestrian traffic would be directed to heavy 
traffic with nowhere to go safely. 
 
Conners recapped the proposal for the funds: 
 

o Allocate $183,000 to the City of Grand Rapids Hastings Street project (Prospect to College 
reconstruction), which is currently significantly over-matched. New federal amount would be 
$630,450 and the new local participating amount would be $1,588,499. Total project cost 
won’t change. 

o Allocate the rest ($301,322) to KCRC for their portion of the approach work on the 100th 
Street Bridge project. This work is being done under the Trunkline bridge replacement 
project that is currently in the TIP, and therefore the funding would be transferred to an 
MDOT funding template. 

o If for some reason the Grand Rapids is unable to make obligation in 2019, the subcommittee 
recommends flexing the unobligated amount to ITP to go toward the purchase of a bus.  

    
MOTION by DeVries, SUPPORT by Schweitzer, to approve the $484,322 STP-Urban Funds.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 

IV.  OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 None. 
 
V. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Adjourn 9:43 
 
 
 



ITEM IV: ATTACHMENT A 
 

         

GRAND VALLEY METROPOLITAN COUNCIL 

ADA TOWNSHIP   ALGOMA TOWNSHIP  ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP  ALPINE TOWNSHIP  BELDING  BYRON TOWNSHIP  CALEDONIA TOWNSHIP  CANNON TOWNSHIP CASCADE TOWNSHIP  CEDAR SPRINGS 

COOPERSVILLE  COURTLAND TOWNSHIP  EAST GRAND RAPIDS  GAINES TOWNSHIP  GEORGETOWN TOWNSHIP  GRAND RAPIDS  GRAND RAPIDS TOWNSHIP  GRANDVILLE  GREENVILLE   HASTINGS 

HUDSONVILLE  IONIA  JAMESTOWN TOWNSHIP  KENT COUNTY  KENTWOOD  LOWELL  LOWELL TOWNSHIP   MIDDLEVILLE  OTTAWA COUNTY  PLAINFIELD TOWNSHIP  ROCKFORD 

 SAND LAKE   TALLMADGE TOWNSHIP  WALKER  WAYLAND  WYOMING 

678 FRONT AVENUE NW   SUITE 200    GRAND RAPIDS, MICHIGAN 49504    PH. 616 77-METRO (776-3876)    FAX 774-9292    WWW.GVMC.ORG 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
DATE: August 21, 2019 
 
TO:  TPSG Subcommittee 
 
FROM: Laurel Joseph, Transportation Planner 
 
RE:  FY2020-2023 Potential Nonmotorized Projects  
 

 

At the next TPSG meeting, which will take place on August 27, 2019 at 9:30 
am at GVMC, the Subcommittee will be tasked with discussing and making a 
recommendation regarding the proposed pool of potential TAP projects 
recommended by the Nonmotorized Subcommittee at its June 2019 meeting.  

The Nonmotorized Subcommittee has recommended the attached pool of 
projects to move forward in the MGS application system to go through the 
MDOT technical review process for potential regional TAP funding. FY2020 
and FY2021 are both over-programmed with the intent of awarding projects on 
a first come, first served basis once they get through the MGS process to 
utilize as much of the GVMC TAP allocation as possible and roll the rest to the 
next year. The plan will be to revisit this list in FY2021 when we know the 
rollover status of the pool and how much room, if any, is left in the TAP budget 
for possible additional FY2022-2023 projects.  

Also attached is the Nonmotorized Plan list of projects that the Nonmotorized 
Subcommittee reviewed when making their recommendations for this pool of 
projects. If the TPSG Subcommittee wishes to recommend any changes to the 
proposed pool, any additional project proposed for possible TAP funding must 
be selected from the Nonmotorized Plan list of projects.  

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (616) 776-7610. 

 



PRELIMINARY DRAFT FY 2020-2023 Proposed Pool of Potential Regional TAP Projects
Recommended by the Non-Motorized Subcommittee

June 2019
2020

Table ID Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type
Length 
(Miles)

Priority (5-
15) Cost Total Local (30%) Federal (70%)

6 Alpine Township 4 Mile Rd Sidewalk Yorkview Dr to West River Sidewalk 0.32 13 $150,000 $45,000 $105,000
51 City of Grand Rapids Plainfield Ave I-96 to 390' N of Salemo Dr Sidewalk 1 14 $496,900 $304,400 $192,500

199 Jamestown Township Greenly St connector Sun Ridge Dr to 24th Ave Sidepath 0.75 9 $198,000 $59,400 $138,600
184 City of Wyoming Plaster Creek Trail Buchanan Ave to Division Shared Use Path 0.25 13 $550,000 $165,000 $385,000

65 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Creek Pathway New Holland St to Allen St Shared Use Path 0.63 10 $270,500 $81,150 $189,350
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $0 $0 $0

Total $1,665,400 $654,950 $1,010,450
Budget $647,272 

2021

Table ID Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type
Length 
(Miles)

Priority (5-
15) Cost Total Local (30%) Federal (70%)

199 Jamestown Township Greenly St connector Sun Ridge Dr to 24th Ave Sidepath 0.75 9 $198,000 $59,400 $179,200
65 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Creek Pathway New Holland St to Allen St Shared Use Path 0.63 10 $270,500 $81,150 $189,350

178 City of Walker Kinney Ave Trail

City Central Park and Waldorf St east to Kinney 
Ave, north to 3 Mile Rd, and east to Fruit Ridge 
Ave Shared Use Path 0.85 10 $560,000 $168,000 $392,000

1 Ada Township Argo Drive Hall Street to Cascade Road Sharrows/Sidewalk/Shared Use Path0.53 13 $170,000 $51,000 $119,000
28 City of Grand Rapids 44th St Sidewalk Eastern Ave to Trade Drive Sidewalk (north side) 0.45 13 $697,580 $476,580 $221,000

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $0 $0 $0
Total $1,896,080 $836,130 $1,100,550

Budget $647,272 

2022

Table ID Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type
Length 
(Miles)

Priority (5-
15) Cost Total Local (30%) Federal (70%)

63 City of Grand Rapids/Wyoming Eastern Ave Sidewalk 44th St to 36th St (east side only) Sidewalk 0 15 $408,197 $176,526 $231,671
78 City of Kentwood 52nd Street Trail Plaster Creek Trail to Bailey's Grove Drive Shared Use Path/Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes0 8 $100,000 $30,000 $70,000

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $0 $0 $0
Total $508,197 $206,526 $301,671

Budget $647,272 

2023

Table ID Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type
Length 
(Miles)

Priority (5-
15) Cost Total Local (30%) Federal (70%)

193 Grand Rapids Township Crahen Valley Park Trail Existing Trail near Leonard to Knapp Court Shared Use Path 0.8 9 $2,100,000 $630,000 $1,470,000
43 City of Grand Rapids Ken-O-Sha Drive Eastern Ave to1850 ft. east Sidewalk - north side 0.35 10 $224,793 $67,438 $157,355

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $0 $0 $0
Total $2,324,793 $697,438 $1,627,355

Budget $647,272 

JosephL
Draft



GVMC Non-Motorized Plan Projects - 4/10/2019

Table ID Projects by Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type Length Priority (5- Total Cost Status
1 Ada Township Ada, Cascade, GR Township and Kentwood Trail Conn Hall Street to Spaulding Avenue Sidewalk 0.53 13 $170,000 

2 Ada Township Honey Creek Trail (Ada-Cannon Conn.) Knapp St to 4 Mile Rd Sidepath 1.4 7 $654,000

3 Ada Township Knapp St Bridge Across the Grand River Pedestrian Bridge n/a 8 $1,770,000

4 Ada Township Spaulding Ave/Fulton St/Carl Dr Ada Dr to Grand River Dr Sidepath 1.61 12 $820,000

5 Allendale Township 68th Avenue Trail Lake Michigan Dr to North Bank Trail & Green Way Trail Sidepath 3 6 $450,000

6 Alpine Township 4 Mile Rd Sidewalk Yorkland Dr to West River Sidewalk 0.32 13 $150,000

7 Alpine Township 4 Miles Rd Sidewalk Hachmuth to Yorkland (north side only) Sidewalk 0.32 13 $140,000

8 Alpine Township Lamoreaux Drive Sidewalk Alpine to Westgate (north side only) Sidewalk 0.39 10 $180,000

9 Byron Township 100th St Trail Division Ave to Burlingame St Sidepath 2 7 $1,500,000

10 Byron Township 64th St Sidewalks Byron Center Ave to Estates Dr Sidewalk 1.4 9 $750,000

11 Byron Township 68th Street Trail
Kenowa Avenue to Byron Center Avenue - Connecting Fred Meijer Kenowa Trail to 
Kent Trails and Byron Center Avenue Shared Use Path 3 10 $2,900,000

12 Byron Township 76th St Trail Railyard Dr to Byron Cener Ave Sidepath 1 9 $800,000

13 Byron Township 84th St Trail Burlingame Ave to Existin Path in Douglas Walker Park Sidepath 1 8 $750,000

14 Byron Township 84th St Trail Eldora Dr to West Middle School Sidepath 0.4 7 $300,000

15 Byron Township 84th Street Sidewalk
Burlingame to Byron Commerce Drive, connecting Downtown Byron to Douglas 
Walker Park to Tanger Outlet Mall Sidewalk 1.4 7 $375,000

16 Byron Township Burlingame Ave Trail 100th St to 84th St Sidepath 2 7 $1,500,000

17 Byron Township Burlingame Avenue Sidewalk Planters Row Drive to 76th Street Sidewalk 1.6 7 $492,000

18 Byron Township Whistlestop Park Trail (76th St Trail)
Kent Trail to Whistlestop Park - Connecting Kent Trail to Bicentenial Park and 
Whistlestop Park Sidepath 0.9 7 $470,000

19 Caledonia Township 84th Street Cherry Valley to Alaska Ave Shared Use Path 1.5 9 $1,281,500

20 Caledonia Township Alaksa Avenue 84th Street to 68th Street Shared Use Path 2 7 $1,696,000

21 Caledonia Township Caledonia Trail Phase 1B 84th St to Paul Henry Trail Sidepath/Bike Path 2.05 10 $1,551,816 Funded - 2019 State Funds

22 Caledonia Township Campau Lake Loop

68th Street, Alaska Avenue to Whitneyville Road; Whitneyville Road, 76th Street to 
66th Street; 66th Street, Whitneyville Road to McCords Avenue; McCords Avenue, 
66th Street to 76th Street and 76th Street, McCords Avenue to Whitneyville Road Shared Use Path 5.1 6 $3,191,000

23 Cannon Township Honey Creek Trail (Ada-Cannon Conn.) 4 Mile Rd to Cannonsburg Rd Sidepath 1.76 7 $1,700,000

24 Cascade Township Burton St Bridge/Trail Pedestrian Path across I-96 Overpass to Patterson Avenue Pedestrian Bridge/Sidepath n/a 11 $2,150,000 Funded - 2021 State Funds

25 City of Grand Rapids 3 Mile Rd Fuller Ave to East City Limits Bike Lanes 0.75 11 $308,913 Funded - 2019 MPO Funds

26 City of Grand Rapids 3 Mile Rd Monroe Ave to Coit Ave; and Northwood St to Plainfield Ave Sidewalk (South Side) 0.45 12 $476,885 Funded - 2018 MPO Funds

27 City of Grand Rapids 44th St Sidewalk Eastern Ave to Trade Drive Sidewalk (north side) 0.45 13 $697,580

28 City of Grand Rapids Century Ave Cycle Track Burton St to Franklin St; Pleasant Ave to Grandville Ave Separated Bikeway 1.5 13 TBD

29 City of Grand Rapids Crescent St Corridor Phase II Division Ave & Crescent St Intersection to Ottawa Ave Pedestrian Improvments 0.05 14 $1,155,000

30 City of Grand Rapids Crescent St Corridor Phase III Ottawa Ave to Monroe Ave Pedestrian Improvments 0.11 14 $1,530,000

31 City of Grand Rapids Division Ave Phase II Oakes St to Fulton St Streetscape Improvements 0.17 15 $750,000

32 City of Grand Rapids Division Ave Separated Bike Lanes Monroe Center to Leonard St Bike Lane 1.5 12 TBD

33 City of Grand Rapids Eastern Ave Sidewalk 44th St to 36th St (east side) Sidewalk 1 15 $330,951

34 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Edges (East) Caledonia St to Ann Street Shared Use Path 6 $1,925,739

35 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Edges (East) Under Ann St Bridge to Riverside Trailhead Shared Use Path 13 $900,000

36 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Edges (East) Fulton St South to US-131 Shared Use Path 0.42 13 $375,000

37 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Edges (East) Leonard St Bridge to Caledonia St Shared Use Path 0.75 15 $2,616,429

38 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Edges (East) US-131 to Wealthy St with connection to Oxford St Trail and Kent Trails Shared Use Path 0.14 13 $375,000

39 City of Grand Rapids Grand River Walkway (West) West bank of the River under and around Fulton St Shared Use Path 0.78 15 $1,312,500

40 City of Grand Rapids Hastings Street Non-Motorized Path, Phase 2   Coit Avenue to College Avenue Shared Use Path 0.5 14 $1,925,739

41 City of Grand Rapids Hastings Street Non-Motorized Path,
Phase 3

Livingston Avenue to Division Avenue Shared Use Path 0.5 10 $2,173,340

42 City of Grand Rapids Highland Park Trail College Ave to Grand Ave Shared Use Path 0.7 10 TBD

43 City of Grand Rapids Ken-O-Sha Drive Eastern Ave to1850 ft. east Sidewalk - north side 0.35 10 $224,793

44 City of Grand Rapids Lyon St Bikeway Separated bikeway(s) from Division to Diamond; shared street conditions from 
Diamond to Plymouth (markings, signage, traffic calming); intersection improvements 

Separated bikeways, shared lane markings, 
intersection improvements, trail widening, 

2.52 13 $582,265

45 City of Grand Rapids Monroe Avenue - Guild St to Riverside Park Dr Sidewalk (west side of street), ramp construction, crossing improvements Sidewalk 0.88 13 $451,440

46

City of Grand Rapids Mount Vernon Separated Bikeway W. Fulton St. to Bridge St. Separated Bikeway, Intersection and Signals 
work; Minor widening; pavement 
markings/signs

0.5 12 TBD

47 City of Grand Rapids Paul Henry Trail Extension 44th St to 36th St Shared Use Path 1.45 15 $712,500

48 City of Grand Rapids Pearl Street Separated Bike Lanes N. Division Ave to Lake Michigan Dr./Mount Vernon Separated Bike Lanes 0.6 13 $304,500

49

City of Grand Rapids Pedestrian/Bicycle Pathway Tunnel Riveredges Trail east to Hastings St; North of I-196 to Bond Ave; south under I-196 
abandoned railroad tunnel (Ottawa Ave EB exit); to Monroe Ave and Ottawa Ave; 

Shared Use Path 11 $729,000

50 City of Grand Rapids Plainfield Ave I-96 to 390' N of Salerno Dr Sidewalk 1 14 $496,900 Funded - 2020 MPO Funds

51 City of Grand Rapids Plaster Creek Trail Division Ave to Kirtland Ave New Multi-Use Trail 1.0 12 $410,861

Page 1 of 4



GVMC Non-Motorized Plan Projects - 4/10/2019

Table ID Projects by Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type Length Priority (5- Total Cost Status
52 City of Grand Rapids Plaster Creek Trail Kalamazoo Avenue to East City Line New Multi-Use Trail 1.3 12 $534,119

53 City of Grand Rapids Plaster Creek Trail Buchanan Ave to Burton St Shared Use Path 1.04 14 $247,500

54 City of Grand Rapids Plaster Creek Trail Planning Study Only East of Kalamazoo Ave and west of Division Ave Shared Use Path Planning Study n/a n/a $50,000

55 City of Grand Rapids Plaster Creek Trail underpass of US 131 Kirtland to Century via McKee and Burton New Multi-Use Trail, shared street, 
intersection improvements

0.55 12 $451,947

56 City of Grand Rapids Plymouth St. Trail Extension Leonard St to Knapp; proposed trail to Ball; proposed trail to Perkins New Multi-Use Trail 1.5 11 $616,292

57 City of Grand Rapids Richmond St Bike Lanes Oakleigh Ave to Alpine Ave Bike Lane/Paved Shoulder 2 11 $407,495

58 City of Grand Rapids Seward Ave to Grand Walk, Musketawa, White Pine Planning Study Only Shared Use Path Planning Study n/a n/a $25,000

59 City of Grand Rapids Turner Ave Separated Bikeway/Trail Bridge Street to 11th Street; 11th Street - Turner to Seward Separated Bikeway; trail segment; removal of 
roadway between 2nd and 3rd; intersection, 

1.1 12 TBD

60 City of Grandville 28th Street Chicago Drive Overpass to Ivnrest Avenue - South Side Sidewalk 0.22 $50,000

61 City of Grandville 28th Street Wilson Avenue to Sanford Avenue - South Side Sidewalk 0.8 $165,000

62 City of Grandville Chicago Drive Ivnrest Avenue to Porter Street - South Side Sidewalk 0.44 $90,000

63 City of Grandville Rivertown Drive Canal Avenue to Wilson Avenue - South Side Sidepath 0.53 $125,000

64 City of Hudsonville 32nd Avenue, west side Allen Street to Veteran's Park Sidepath 0.13 11 $105,000

65 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Trail Balsam Dr to Sunrise Park Shared Use Path 0.6 7 $456,000

66 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Trail New Holland St to Allen Street Shared Use Path 0.72 10 $276,346

67 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Trail New Holland St to Highland Dr Shared Use Path 0.35 9 $192,000

68 City of Hudsonville Buttermilk Trail Prospect St to Oak St Shared Use Path 0.29 11 $800,000

69 City of Hudsonville Chicago Drive, south side 40th Ave to 32nd Ave Sidepath 1.07 10 $583,000

70 City of Kentwood 32nd Street Shaffer to Breton Sidewalk 14 TBD

71 City of Kentwood 32nd Street Trail Shaffer to W City Limits Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 13 TBD

72 City of Kentwood 48th Street Trail Eastern to Poinsettia Street Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes/Sidewalk Gaps 11 TBD

73 City of Kentwood 52nd Street  corridor Trail Bailey’s Grove Drive to East Paris Bike Lanes/Sharrows 0.42 10 $10,000 

74 City of Kentwood 52nd Street  corridor Trail Broadmoor to Patterson Bike Lanes/Sharrows 0.38 7 $10,000 

75 City of Kentwood 52nd Street  corridor Trail East Paris to Broadmoor Bike Lanes/Sharrows 0.63 10 $15,000 

76 City of Kentwood 52nd Street Trail Plaster Creek Trail to Bailey's Grove Drive Shared Use Path/Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 8 TBD

77 City of Kentwood 54th Street E of Kelekent thru Mick Sidewalk n/a TBD

78 City of Kentwood 54th Street Kimball to Newcastle Sidewalk n/a TBD

79 City of Kentwood 56th St Connection Eastern to Kellogg Woods Park Shared Use Path/Sidewalk TBD

80 City of Kentwood 58th Street Division to Madison Sidewalk n/a TBD

81 City of Kentwood Andover Primrose to Heyboer Sidewalk n/a TBD

82 City of Kentwood Andrew Kalamazoo to eastern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

83 City of Kentwood Applewood 44th St to Innwood Sidewalk n/a TBD

84 City of Kentwood Ash Andrew to Rondo Sidewalk n/a TBD

85 City of Kentwood Bayham Innwood to Embro Sidewalk n/a TBD

86 City of Kentwood Blaine Edgelawn to 52nd St Sidewalk n/a TBD

87 City of Kentwood Bransford Street To Sarafis Park Donation Cul de sac and Sidewalk n/a TBD

88 City of Kentwood Breton Creek Drive trail extension To Sarafis Park Donation Sidewalk n/a TBD

89 City of Kentwood Breton Trail 52nd to 60th Streets Shared Use Path 0.56 13 $132,000 

90 City of Kentwood Bridle Creek Kalamazoo to Maple Creek Sidewalk n/a TBD

91 City of Kentwood Broadmoor Trail Patterson to 32nd St Shared Use Path/Wide Shoulder 9 TBD

92 City of Kentwood Brookcross Ridgebrook to Christie Sidewalk n/a TBD

93 City of Kentwood Brookmark Cheryl to Kalamazoo Sidewalk n/a TBD

94 City of Kentwood Burton Trail Forest Hill to Patterson Side Path 11 TBD

95 City of Kentwood Calvin College Trail East Paris to W. City Limits Shared Use Path 0.5 11 $40,000 

96 City of Kentwood Calvin Trail - East Paris Connector Burton to East Campus Drive Shared Use Path 12 TBD

97 City of Kentwood Creekview Bridle Creek to Creekridge Sidewalk n/a TBD

98 City of Kentwood Curwood Pickett to 100' North Sidewalk n/a TBD

99 City of Kentwood Daniel Division to eastern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

100 City of Kentwood Division Ave 44th to N City Limits Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 0.25 13 $10,000 

101 City of Kentwood Division Ave 48th to 44th Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 0.5 14 $15,000 

102 City of Kentwood Division Ave 54th to 48th Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 0.75 13 $25,000 

103 City of Kentwood Division Ave 54th to 60th Bike Lanes 0.75 14 $160,000

104 City of Kentwood Eastern Avenue Trail 44th to 60th Streets Bike Lanes/shared lanes 0.78 14 $60,000 

105 City of Kentwood East-West Trail Lamberts Park through Fisheries Park Shared Use Path 0.77 12 $300,000 

106 City of Kentwood East-West Trail Connector 400 blk 48th St south to East-West Trail along Heyboer Drain Shared Use Path 0.25 14 $40,000 

107 City of Kentwood East-West Trail Connector Fisheries Park to 52nd Street - Wildflower Creek Sub. Sharrows 0.27 11 $10,000 

108 City of Kentwood East-West Trail Crossing 5000 Block of Division Refuge Island n/a 14 $30,000 

109 City of Kentwood East-West Trail- Lamberts Park Walma Avenue, 2600 feet East Shared Use Path 0.57 13 $65,000 

110 City of Kentwood
East-West Trail Neighborhood Connector-Lamberst Park 
Segment Loop North of Trail, Adjacent to Kentwood Acre and Springbrook Shared Use Path 7 TBD

111 City of Kentwood East-West Trail North Connector
Kentrood Acres/Springbrook Subdivisions via trail connector off Windy Wood to E-W 
Trail Shared Use Path 7 TBD

Page 2 of 4



GVMC Non-Motorized Plan Projects - 4/10/2019

Table ID Projects by Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type Length Priority (5- Total Cost Status
112 City of Kentwood

East-West Trail Wetlands Boardwalk-Lamberst Park 
Segment Loop South of Trail, East of Lamberts Park Shared Use Path 7 TBD

113 City of Kentwood Edgelawn Springwood to Blaine Sidewalk n/a TBD

114 City of Kentwood Embro Stauffer to northern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

115 City of Kentwood Forest Creek Drive/ Cons. Energy Trail East Paris to Patterson Shared Use Path 1 12 $200,000 

116 City of Kentwood Forest Hill Trail Bridge At I-96 Pedestrian Bridge n/a 14 $2,000,000 

117 City of Kentwood Gerda Rondo to east terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

118 City of Kentwood Heyboer 52nd St to Andover Sidewalk n/a TBD

119 City of Kentwood Highlander Applewood to Larkwood Sidewalk n/a TBD

120 City of Kentwood Innwood Stauffer to Embro Sidewalk n/a TBD

121 City of Kentwood Jefferson Connection Nancy to Kellogg Woods Park Sidewalk n/a TBD

122 City of Kentwood Juanita Jeffrey to Gentian Sidewalk n/a TBD

123 City of Kentwood Kimball 52nd St to 54th St Sidewalk n/a TBD

124 City of Kentwood Kimball Marwood to Pickett Sidewalk n/a TBD

125 City of Kentwood Lake Eastbrook Boulevard 28th  to 32nd Bike Lanes 0.5 15 $65,000 

126 City of Kentwood Larkwood Innwood to Timberwood Sidewalk n/a TBD

127 City of Kentwood Madison 52nd St to Andover Sidewalk n/a TBD

128 City of Kentwood Madison Ave 56th St to 52nd St-west side Sidewalk n/a TBD

129 City of Kentwood Madison Ave Majestic to 56th Street-west side Sidewalk n/a TBD

130 City of Kentwood Mapleview 1216 Mapleview to Newcastle Sidewalk n/a TBD

131 City of Kentwood Marwood Kalamazoo to Kimball Sidewalk n/a TBD

132 City of Kentwood Meadow Lake Drive Connection To Fisheries Trust Park Sidewalk/Shared Use Path 8 TBD

133 City of Kentwood Morningside 44th St to southern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

134 City of Kentwood Newcastle 52nd St to Brookwood School Sidewalk n/a TBD

135 City of Kentwood Newcastle Mapleview to Rondo Sidewalk n/a TBD

136 City of Kentwood Non-Motorized Crack Seal 10 Miles of Existing Facilities Maint. on Sidepath/Shared Use Path 10 n/a $20,000

137 City of Kentwood Patterson Avenue Trail - I 28th St to Burton Street Side Path 0.48 14 $66,000 

138 City of Kentwood Patterson Avenue Trail - II 36th Street to 28th Street Side Path 1 14 $132,000 

139 City of Kentwood Patterson Avenue Trail - III 44th St to 36th Street Side Path 1 10 $132,000 

140 City of Kentwood Patterson Avenue Trail - IV 52nd St to 44th St Side Path 1 9 $132,000 

141 City of Kentwood Patterson Trail Crossing 28th Street Refuge Island n/a 15 $60,000 

142 City of Kentwood Pickett Kimball to Curwood Sidewalk n/a TBD

143 City of Kentwood Pinetree Ave 60th St to Gentian Dr Sidewalk 0.67 14 $196,852 Funded - 2019 State SRTS 

144 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek  Trail Breton to West City Limits Shared Use Path 0.43 14 $85,000 

145 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek Trail 44th St to Shaffer Shared Use Path 1.31 12 $250,000 

146 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek Trail 44th To 52nd Streets Shared Use Path 1.03 11 $250,000 

147 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek Trail Paris Park Dr Extended to 52nd Street Shared Use Path 0.88 12 $250,000 

148 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek Trail Shaffer to Stanaback Park Shared Use Path 0.84 11 $85,000 

149 City of Kentwood Plaster Creek Trail Stanaback Park to Cross Creek Condos Shared Use Path 11 TBD

150 City of Kentwood Primrose Andover to 52nd St Sidewalk n/a TBD

151 City of Kentwood Promise/Secret Connection To north side of Discovery Elementary Sidewalk/Shared Use Path 9 TBD

152 City of Kentwood Radcliff Avenue 28th to 29th Street Sidewalk 0.12 13 $38,400

153 City of Kentwood Ridgebrook Dr/Brookcross Dr 60th St to Brookcross/Ridgebrook to Christie Sidewalk 0.96 14 $90,000

154 City of Kentwood Ridgemoor Trail 28th Street to N City Limits Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes/Sidewalk 0.32 13 $80,000 

155 City of Kentwood Rondo Kalamazoo to Ash Sidewalk n/a TBD

156 City of Kentwood Rondo Newcastle to Kalamazoo Sidewalk n/a TBD

157 City of Kentwood Saddleback Trail 32nd St to Plaster Creek Trail via Shaffer Bike Lane 0.72 13 $30,000 

158 City of Kentwood Saddleback Trail East Paris to Shaffer along 32nd St Side Path 1 13 $132,000 

159 City of Kentwood Saddleback Trail Patterson to  Woodland Creek Apartments Shared Use Path 0.84 14 $132,000 

160 City of Kentwood Saddleback Trail Woodland Creek Apartments to East Paris Shared Use Path 0.63 14 $96,000 

161 City of Kentwood Shaffer Trail 32nd to 44th Streets Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 1.5 11 $45,000 

162 City of Kentwood Sluyter Division to eastern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

163 City of Kentwood Springwood Eastern to Greenboro Sidewalk n/a TBD

164 City of Kentwood Stauffer Embro, 130' east Sidewalk n/a TBD

165 City of Kentwood Stauffer Trail 44th To 52nd Streets Bike Lanes/Shared Lanes 1.3 12 $45,000 

166 City of Kentwood Sunny Creek Kalamazoo to eastern terminus Sidewalk n/a TBD

167 City of Kentwood Terry St Morningside to 500' south Sidewalk n/a TBD

168 City of Kentwood Timberwood Larkwood to Applewood Sidewalk n/a TBD

169 City of Kentwood Wayside Forest Lake to Forest Hill Sidewalk n/a TBD

170 City of Kentwood Wingate Drive Shaffer Avenue to Existing Sidewalk 0.25 n/a $172,500

171 City of Lowell Fred Meijer River Valley Trail Connector Connecting Flat River Valley Rail Trails through the City of Lowell Shared Use Path/Bike Lane/Bike Route 2 11 $5,173,000 CC 2021 State Funds

Page 3 of 4



GVMC Non-Motorized Plan Projects - 4/10/2019

Table ID Projects by Jurisdiction Project Name Project Scope Facility Type Length Priority (5- Total Cost Status
172 City of Lowell/Lowell Township Fred Meijer Flat River Valley Rail Trail II Railroad Corridor from Jackson St East to the County Line Shared Use Path 1 8 $200,000 

173 City of Lowell/Vergennes Township Fred Meijer Flat River Valley Rail Trail I Railroad Corridor From Foreman Road North and East to the County Line Shared Use Path 8.46 8 $2,312,840 Funded - 2019 State Funds 

174 City of Walker Fruit Ridge Bridge Over I-96 Bridge n/a $1,000,000

175 City of Walker Fruit Ridge Trail 3 Mile Rd to Fred Meijer Pioneer Trail Shared Use Path 0.5 9 $330,000

176 City of Walker Kinney Trail
City Central Park and Waldorf St east to Kinney Ave, north to 3 Mile Rd, and east to 
Fruit Ridge Ave Shared Use Path 0.85 10 $560,000

177 City of Walker Leonard St Bike Lanes
Leonard St from Fred Meijer Standale Trail to Remebrance Rd (connecting to Grand 
Rapids bike lanes) Bike Lanes 0.75 11 $15,000

178 City of Walker Standale Trail Crossings Crossings for Remembrance and Leonard along the Standale Trail Crossing Signals n/a 13 $60,000

179 City of Walker Walker Ave Side Path/Bike Lanes
3 Mile Rd (Fred Meijer Pioneer Trail) to south City Limit (connecting to Grand Rapids 
bike lanes) Sidepath/Bike Lane 1 9 $660,000

180 City of Wyoming Buck Creek Trail/Kent Trail Connection Byron Center Ave to Kent Trails Shared Use Path/Refuge Island 0.72 14 $560,000

181 City of Wyoming Frog Hollow/M-6 Trail Connection Frog Hollow park to the M-6 Trail Shared Use Path 0.1 13 $87,201 Funded - 2019 MPO Funds 

182 City of Wyoming Plaster Creek Trail Buchanan Ave to Division Shared Use Path 0.25 13 $550,000

183 City of Wyoming Plaster Creek Trail West to Plaster Creek Blvd and up to Division Ave Shared Use Path 0.28 14 $181,523

184 City of Wyoming Widen & Resurface Interurban Trail Kellogsville Park to 32nd Street Shared Use Path/Bike Route/Sharrows 4.55 15 $534,311 Funded - 2019 MPO Funds  

185 Courtland Township Myers Lake Trail 10 Mile Rd to 12 Mile Rd Sidepath 2.5 11 $685,014

186 Gaines Township Brewer Park/Prairie Wolf Park Connector Connection between the two parks Shared Use Path 0.36 5 $150,000

187 Gaines Township Dutton Spur to Paul Henry Trail From Dutton / 68th St to Existing trail Shared Use Path 1.06 8 $250,000 Funded - 2018 State Funds 

188 Gaines Township Township Trail (Electric Transmission ROW)
Gaines Township population Center to the Dutton Spur connecting to the Paul Henry 
Trail Shared Use Path 2.46 10 $500,000

189 Georgetown Township 12th Avenue - Grand River Greenway Trail Phase III 10th Ave/Golfside to 12th Avenue Sidepath 1.608 11 $433,345 Funded - 2020 State Funds

190 Georgetown Township 42nd Ave - Eas Side Between Pierce St & Park Trail Head - on East Side of 42nd Ave Sidepath 0.923 8 $310,624 Funded - 2019 State Funds

191 Georgetown Township Cottonwood Dr - Grand River Greenway Trail Phase III 1000' NW of Baldwin, Cottonwood Dr to 10th Ave and Golfside Roadside Facilities 1.354 13 $552,572 Funded - 2018 State Funds 

192 Grand Rapids Township Crahen Valley Park Trail Existing Trail near Leonard to Knapp Court Shared Use Path 0.8 9 $2,100,000

193 Jamestown Township 24th Ave Shoulder Quincy St to Greenly St Paved shoulder 0.5 10 $21,120 

194 Jamestown Township 24th Ave Sidewalks Outback St to Riley St Sidewalk 0.82 6 $200,000 

195 Jamestown Township 32nd Ave Sidepath From Riley to Forest Grove Elementary (Perry St) Sidepath 2 8 $1,600,000

196 Jamestown Township 32nd Ave Sidepath From Riley to Quincy St Sidepath 1 10 $800,000

197 Jamestown Township Angling Rd connector Quincy, Angling Rd, Jackson, 8th Ave, Barry St, to Kenowa Ave Paved Shoulder 3.75 7 $169,000 

198 Jamestown Township Greenly St connector Sun Ridge Dr to 24th Ave Sidepath 0.75 9 $396,000 

199 Kent County Parks Fred Meijer Pioneer Trail - Phase 2 3 Mile Rd and Alpine Ave to West River Dr and Landkamp St - Easement NM Trail 0.172 14 $446,821 Funded - 2018 State Funds

200 Kent County Parks Fred Meijer Pioneer Trail - Phase 5 West River Dr -Landkamp St to North Park St NM Trail 1.389 14 $1,700,000 Funded -2019 State Funds

201 Nelson Township 17 Mile Rd East of Cedar Springs to Ritchie Ave; Ritchie Ave from 17 Mile S to S of Becker St Sidepath 1.1 7 $330,000 Funded - 2019 Local Funds 

202 Plainfield Township 10 Mile Trail Belmont Avenue to Premier Park Sidepath 0.9 8 $650,000

203 Plainfield Township 4 Mile Sidewalk 4 Mile Road, Dean Lake Avenue -gap Sidewalk 0.25 10 $80,000

204 Plainfield Township Ada Trail Grand River Drive, East Beltline to Ada Twp border Sidepath 2.6 7 $1,500,000

205 Plainfield Township Airway Street Airway Street, Plainfield Avenue to Hunsberger Avenue/Northview HS Sidewalk 0.6 11 $150,000

206 Plainfield Township Beltline Trail West River Drive to 4 Mile (GR twp connector) Sidepath 2.5 11 $1,000,000

207 Plainfield Township Coit Sidewalk Woodworth Street to 4 Mile Road Sidewalk 0.7 11 $200,000 

208 Plainfield Township Comstock Park Trail Phase 1 - Pine Island, West River Drive to 6 Mile Road to Division Avenue Sidepath 2 8 $800,00

209 Plainfield Township Comstock Park Trail Phase 2 - Pine Island drive, 6 Mile Road to Post Drive Sidepath 3.2 8 $1,600,000

210 Plainfield Township North Grand River Trail North side of the Grand River, White Pine Trail to Northland Drive Shared Use Path 2.7 7 $1,700,000

211 Plainfield Township North Rogue River Trail Rogue River Road to Rogue River Park (KCPR) to White Pine Trail Sidepath 1.9 8 $1,500,000

212 Plainfield Township Northland Trail West River Drive to M-44 (Belding Road/Cannon Twp connector) Sidepath 2.1 9 $1,100,000

213 Plainfield Township Northview Trail Hunsberger Avenue, Plainfield Avenue to Airway Street (Northview HS) Sidepath 0.8 10 $350,000

214 Plainfield Township Post Drive Trail Pine Island Drive to Jupiter Avenue North Trail Shared Use Path 1.9 7 $750,000

215 Plainfield Township Premier Park Trail 10 Mile Road through Premier Park to White Pine Trail Shared Use Path 0.8 6 $500,000

216 Plainfield Township Rockford Trail Rogue River Road to White Pine Trail (Jericho Avenue connection) Shared Use Path 2.7 8 $1,200,000

Page 4 of 4


	TPSG Agenda 08_27_2019
	TPSG Minutes 2.26.2019
	TPSG_August_Memo
	PrelimDRAFT_ProposedFY20-23 TAP Projects_June2019
	20190606_NMPlanList

